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FOREWORD OF THE PRESIDENT
Dear Shareholders, Dear Partners, Dear Aerospace Fans,
This year Aero celebrates the 90th anniversary of its foundation,

It is the experience from the development, production

which ranks us among the oldest aerospace manufacturers

and operational support of the in-house designed military

in the world. In 1919, Aero developed and carried out the maiden

and civil types which distinguishes Aero from manufacturers

flight of its first in-house designed type, the Aero A-1 aircraft,

of particular subassemblies or mere parts. All large projects

and since then has produced more than 11,000 units

today are dependent on the reliability of suppliers – and our

of different types: military as well as civill, subsonic as well

customers appreciate our complexity, high quality and reliability.

as supersonic, in-house designed as well as license produced

Moreover, Aero also provides its clients with the service of supply

aircraft, delivered to the whole world. We are still a proud partner

chain management – the Alenia C-27J Program manages

to several air forces, particularly the Czech Air Force, flying

30 companies, the Sikorsky S-76 Program more than 200.

our L-39 and L-159 aircraft, who we will always provide

So it is not just our history and tradition, but also the present time

with first-class support. We can rightly be proud of what we have

showing that we are a modern, strong, stable and self-confident

achieved in the aerospace business, but at the same time have

company, fully focused on our new strategic aim: to build

to face the new situation on world markets, where it is getting

a new international aerospace holding in the CEE region.

harder and harder to win as an original manufacturer.
I wish to thank all our employees and partners who have
Aerostructures projects represent more than 80% of our current

contributed to the grand tradition of Aero. And I am looking

output. We have several programs - highly interesting

forward to cooperating with everyone who is interested

for us as well as from the global point of view. Our cooperation

in our current and future projects and is prepared to get involved.

with Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, for example, is certainly
unique in terms of the extent of finalization.

Igor Hulák, President

WE CAN RIGHTLY BE PROUD
OF OUR TRADITION AND EXPERIENCE
IN AEROSPACE PRODUCTION

1919

2009

COMPANY PROFILE
WE FOCUS ON DEVELOPMENT, PRODUCTION,
SALES AND SUPPORT OF MILITARY
AND CIVIL AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGY

1936
A-204 TWIN-ENGINE
LOW WING TRANSPORT
AIRCRAFT MAIDEN FLIGHT

1919

2009
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COMPANY PROFILE
CORPORATE PROFILE

AEROSTRUCTURES PROGRAM

MILITARY PROGRAM

PORTFOLIO OF COMPANIES

AERO Vodochody a.s. (further referred to as Aero), based

The Aerostructures Program of Aero focuses on comprehensive

The Military Program of Aero focuses on the comprehensive

Aero is a 100% shareholder of Technometra Radotín, a.s.,

in Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic,

deliveries of aerospace technology with a high degree of product

support of Aero-branded final products – advanced training

a traditional manufacturer of landing gears and other

is a joint-stock company registered in the Companies Register

finalization, including systems integration and testing, full control

and light combat aircraft. The single-seat advanced light combat

aerostructures, and Letiště Vodochody a.s. (Vodochody Airport),

maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 449

of quality, supply chain management and end-to-end customer

and two-seat advanced training L-159 aircraft represent the key

a private international airport. The potential of Aero was

on January 2, 1991, Identification number: 00010545, VAT:

support starting from the production transfer phase, through

elements of the complex L-159 Combat & Training System,

significantly boosted by the acquisition of Rotortech Aero

CZ00010545. Until the end of the year 2006, Aero was a state-owned

the implementation of customer's requirements during

which also includes an integrated logistic support, a ground

Composites Ltd., a manufacturer of composites, by Penta

company. On January 4, 2007, Penta private equity group

the production phase to after-sales support. The Program is involved

based training system, mission planning and debriefing

private equity group concluded in 2007.

became the sole shareholder of Aero and in the same year

in the entire life cycle of commercial and military projects,

equipment and other support aids. The system was developed

successfully finished its restructuring process, the main result

and combines the company’s experience in aerospace production

in cooperation with leading international and national aerospace

STRATEGIC AIM

of which was a profit in the amount of CZK 236 million posted by

dating back to 1919 with the everyday practice within running

manufacturers and is well-established in service with the Czech

The strategic aim of Aero is to be the preferred partner

Aero in 2007. Aero showed profit in 2008 as well, reaching

serial production, using the latest technology and test methods.

Air Force. The single-seat L-159 ALCA advanced light combat

in first-class projects of leading aerospace manufacturers,

aircraft was put in service of the Czech Air Force in 2001 and the

to participate in risk-sharing projects and offer flexible services

Aero has been gradually expanding its portfolio of customers,

two-seat L-159T advanced training aircraft followed suit in 2007.

and advanced products in the global aerospace and defence

representing the world’s leading aerospace manufacturers.

As a part of the national air defence system, the L-159 squadron

industry. Aero will keep developing its current potential

In 2008, the production of Embraer 170/190 door subassemblies

flies a broad scale of missions, starting with advanced and

organically, by innovation and investment in advanced
technologies, as well as through international acquisitions.

CZK 402 million. Until December 31, 2008, the share capital
of Aero amounted to CZK 5,014,088,734.
Aero is the largest aerospace manufacturer in the Czech Republic,
dealing with development, production, sales and support of military

for the French company Latecoere commenced as a part

operational training, through ground support to reconnaissance

and civil aerospace technology. Aero focuses mainly

of the Program, and a further major contract for deliveries

and air-to-air missions, regularly participating in international

on cooperation with world’s leading aerospace manufacturers

of JAS-39 Gripen pylons for the Swedish Saab was signed.

exercises within the NATO (Tactical Leadership Programme,

Through acquisitions, Aero is going to build a new European

in international aerostructures projects. The Military Program

Production of the S-76 helicopter ready for installation of dynamic

NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter or Flying Rhino). Aero renders

aerospace holding in the CEE region. Increasing its production

of Aero is the long-term partner to several air forces,

parts for the U.S. customer Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation

services to the L-159 squadron on the basis of a long-term

capacity and pooling experience in aerospace production will help

particularly the Czech Air Force. Aero has a certified quality

continues, as do the deliveries of C-27J Spartan center wing box

agreement with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic.

Aero offer even better services to its current customers, attract

management system in accordance with AS 9100 / ISO 9001

for the Italian customer Alenia Aeronautica, F/A-18E/F/G gun bay

To L-39/L-59 customers the Program offers a wide range

new ones and better compete with the global players on the

and is a holder of all relevant certificates, as the company

door for the U.S. Boeing Company, Boeing 767 fixed leading edge

of services starting with service-life extension programs,

aerospace market. In 2008, Aero bid in three privatization tenders

as well as for all production processes in accordance with

assembly kits for British Spirit AeroSystems, Airbus 320/A340

through overhauls to upgrades of all the systems of the aircraft.

for aerospace manufacturers in the CEE region - the Romanian

national and international standards.

subassemblies for the European concern EADS or Boeing 747

aerospace producers Avioane Craiova and IAR Ghimbav,

parts for Vought Aircraft Industries of the U.S.

and the Polish helicopter producer PZL Swidnik.

WE ARE GRADUALLY EXPANDING OUR PORTFOLIO
OF CUSTOMERS, REPRESENTING THE WORLD’S
LEADING AEROSPACE MANUFACTURERS

1919

2009

12 |

| 13

HISTORY
Production of the first Czech military aircraft in Aero, 1919.

EARLY DAYS

EXPANSION

WAR PRODUCTION

INDIGENOUS JET TRAINERS

Aero was established on February 25, 1919, with a seat in the Old

More powerful training aircraft types followed, and after

The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilized

In the second half of the 1950s, the need for jet trainer aircraft

Town of Prague and production premises in Prague-Bubenec.

the production was moved to new facilities in Prague-Vysocany,

and later developed during the German occupation when Aero

became more and more urgent. Efforts by the Czechoslovak

Since its foundation, Aero focused on development and production

a new family of reconnaissance, bomber and training biplanes

produced stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with

aircraft industry, concentrated on developing an optimized

of aircraft, aerostructures and aircraft repairs, and in 1919

was born: Aero A-11 and A-12. Military pilots soon became

full jigging for reconnaissance and training missions – Focke-

airframe and indigenous jet engine, resulted in the maiden flight

it carried out the first flight of its first indigenous type – the Aero

famous for breaking records and winning races in aircraft

Wulf Fw 189 and Siebel Si 204.

of the L-29 in 1959. The definitive step on Aero's way to mass

A-1 aircraft. An order from the Ministry of Defence for serial

bearing the Aero brand. Aero, at that time a private enterprise

production of this test-proven type designed for training of military

owned by Dr. Vladimir Kabeš, became the main contractor

POST-WAR PRODUCTION

production of jet trainers took place in the summer of 1961

pilots soon followed – a product typical of much more distant future!

for the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry of Public Works

Immediately after the war ended, the nationalized Aero continued

different prototypes and was declared the most suitable trainer

(commercial aviation).

to produce and repair aircraft. Modified German aircraft types

for the Eastern Bloc countries. Production and deliveries

were manufactured for the Czechoslovak Air Force as well

continued smoothly for the ten following years, during which

First foreign customers soon followed, starting with Finland.

as for commercial aviation. Shortly after the war, a new

the second generation, a more powerful and more efficient

Between the two world wars, Aero achieved a number

groundbreaking indigenous type was introduced

L-39 was developed. Production of the L-39 occupied Aero's

of Czechoslovak firsts: it built a prototype of the first indigenous

- the high-performance, twin-engine, all-metal, four-seat Aero 45.

workshops and assembly halls during 1970s and 1980s.

near Moscow: the L-29 Delfin won comparative tests of three

fighter airplane, designed the first dedicated cabin transport

A number of air forces around the world still benefit from

aircraft, the first twin-engine aircraft, the first seaplane

JET ERA

with indigenously designed floats, introduced a braced high-wing

In 1953, new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft production

monoplane and also pioneered a practical design of a wooden

were built in Vodochody and were put into operation in the

cantilever wing structure.

same year. The production, in which several Czechoslovak

of time, forming a perfect basis for further development.

aviation plants were involved, focused on a large-scale license

The advent of 1990s brought incorporation of Western avionics

series production of the Soviet MiG-15 aircraft and its derivatives.

and standards as well as the use of a more powerful American

The supersonic MiG-19 and MiG-21 aircraft were manufactured

engine and global equipment, and with it a start of a new chapter

by Aero through the 1960s and 1970s, paving the way

in the life of the company. The L-159 aircraft was developed.

the excellent training quality of this affordable aircraft.

in production capabilities to indigenous jet trainer programs
- the L-29 Delfin and the L-39 Albatros.

AERO WAS FOUNDED IN 1919 IN THE OLD TOWN
OF PRAGUE AND IN 1953 MOVED TO NEW FACILITIES
IN VODOCHODY

1919

2009

The L-39 Albatros family expanded considerably in the course
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HISTORY TIMELINE
Production of the first Czech military aircraft in Aero, 1919.

1919

1943

Aero founded in Prague
A-1, first indigenous
military training
aircraft

1921

1947

A-10,
first indigenous civil airliner

1923

1953

A-34 "Blackbird",
first of sport
and training light biplanes family

1932

A-100 family,
military biplane
(bomber and reconnaissance)

1937

MB-200 all-metal
bomber produced
under French license
(Marcel Bloch)

1938

A-304 twin-engine low
wing military aircraft
A-300 twin-engine
low wing bomber

1939

C4/C-104 (Bucker Bu-131
Jungmann) training
and aerobatic biplane

Maiden flight of L-39MS jet trainer, for export designated
L-59 Super Albatros (60 aircraft delivered 1992-1996)

1997

Aero moved from Prague
to new facilities in Vodochody

1954

De Havilland DH-50
airliner produced under
British license

1929

1986

Ae-45
twin-engine civil
aircraft

A-11 family of successful
military biplanes
(bomber
and reconnaissance)

1925

1919

C-3 (Siebel Si-204D)
twin-engine military aircraft

2000

Maiden flight of first
MiG-15 jet fighter built under
Soviet license (3,405 aircraft delivered 1954-1962)

1958

Maiden flight of MiG-19 supersonic
fighter built by Aero under Soviet license
(103 aircraft delivered 1958-1962)

1959

Maiden flight of L-29 Delfin (Dolphin),
first in-house designed jet trainer
(3,500 aircraft
delivered 1963-1974)

1962

Maiden flight of MiG-21 supersonic
fighter built by Aero under Soviet license
(194 aircraft delivered 1962-1972)

1968

Maiden flight of L-159 advanced light combat aircraft
(72 aircraft delivered to Czech Air Force)

Maiden flight of L-39
Albatros jet trainer
(more than 2,900
aircraft delivered
1971-1999)

Production of S-76 helicopter for Sikorsky
Aircraft Corporation launched
Maiden flight of Ae 270 civil utility aircraft

2001

Production of F/A-18 gun bay door for Boeing St. Louis launched
Production of Boeing 767 fixed leading edge kits for BAE SYSTEMS
(today Spirit AeroSystems) launched

2002

Maiden flight of L-159B
advanced trainer

2004

Delivery of L-159 aircraft
to Czech Air Force completed

2005

Government of the Czech Republic decided on the privatization of Aero
Long-term agreement on Czech Air Force L-39/L-159
follow-on support signed

2007

Penta private equity group becomes the sole shareholder of Aero
L-159T advanced trainers delivered to Czech Air Force
Rotortech Composites Ltd. acquired by Penta
Production of C-27J Spartan center wing box
for Alenia Aeronautica launched

2008

Production of Embraer 170/190 door
subassemblies for Latecoere launched
Contract on JAS-39 Gripen
pylons production signed with Saab

2009

COMPANY BODIES
AND MANAGEMENT

1959
L-29 DELFIN
- FIRST JET
TRAINER DESIGNED
IN CZECHOSLOVAKIA

1919

WE DELIVER FLEXIBLE SERVICES
AND ADVANCED PRODUCTS IN THE GLOBAL
AEROSPACE AND DEFENCE INDUSTRY

2009
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COMPANY BODIES
AND MANAGEMENT

ORGANIZATION CHART

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008:

* as at December 31, 2008

Chairman: Zdeněk Sýkora
Members: Petr Brychta
Ondřej Benáček

SUPERVISORY BOARD AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008:
Chairman: Václav Štajner
Members: Jan Borýsek
Martin Prachař

TOP MANAGEMENT AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008:
Igor Hulák, President
Zdeněk Sýkora, Vice President Military Sales
Petr Kudrna, authorized to manage the Military Program
Monika Vajnerová, Vice President Aerostructures
Michal Flídr, Vice President Finance
Josef Kadlec, Vice President Operations
Jiří Sauer, Vice President Procurement
Martin Kačur, Vice President Airport Development
Zdeněk Bireš, Quality Director
Jiří Fiala, Engineering Director
Vladimíra Šeböková, HR Director

1919

*

2009

1968
INDIGENOUS JET
TRAINER L-39 ALBATROS
MAIDEN FLIGHT

1919

REPORT ON BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES
DESPITE THE UNFAVORABLE SITUATION
ON THE WORLD MARKETS IN 2008, WE SHOWED
A PROFIT OF CZK 402 MILLION

2009
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REPORT ON BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES
GENERAL FINANCIAL SITUATION

REVENUES

PROFIT

In 2008, the profit of Aero was significantly influenced

In 2008, the revenues of Aero reached CZK 4.2 billion. The total

In 2008, Aero showed a profit of CZK 401.6 million made up from

The profit from derivative operations amounted to CZK 78 million

by the production and sales of the Sikorsky S-76 helicopter,

revenues were contributed to in 89% by the revenue from the sale

an operating profit of CZK 297.8 million, a financial profit of

in the first half of the year, and the loss to CZK 42 million in the

performance of contracts with the Ministry of Defence

of own goods and services, in 9% by the revenue for goods sold

CZK 93.7 million and an extraordinary income of CZK 10 million.

second half of 2008 (Aero actively uses exchange rate hedging).

of the Czech Republic, and by other aerostructures programs,

and in 2% by the revenue from the sale of material and property.
In 2008, the operating profit was positively influenced by the better

The income interest from loans exceeded the interest from credits

The revenues were mainly influenced by the aerostructures

than planned revenue from the Sikorsky Program (by CZK 133

by CZK 10 million. The exchange rate profit from revaluation of

The profit was also boosted by operating finance; the credit

programs, especially the production and sale of the civil

million) and the Military Program (by CZK 117 million).

loans was CZK 54 million higher than the losses. The financial

line was drawn to the maximum limit of USD 60 million,

Sikorsky S-76 helicopters: 57 S-76C++ helicopters and one S-76D

The operating profit, on the other hand, was negatively weighted

profit was positively influenced by the waiver of the principal

based on a revolving loan agreement for export finance,

prototype were delivered to Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation in 2008.

by the development in the exchange rate of the Czech Crown

and interest on loans (CZK 170 million) from Salori Holding B.V.

and guarantees were signed between Aero and Česká exportní

As for the other aerostructures programs, the Alenia C-27J

to the U.S. Dollar and Euro, especially in the first half of the year.

The financial profit was negatively influenced by the final posting

banka a.s. The cooperation was further cemented by signing

Program, producing the whole center wing box for the C-27J

The effect of the exchange rate on the decrease of the operating

of a charge in the amount of CZK 506 million related to the voluntary

profit was more than CZK 75 million.

liquidation of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. (founded as a joint venture

on which Aero focused.

a framework agreement on assignment of future export

Spartan tactical military cargo aircraft, the F/A-18

receivables for consideration.

Program (gun bay door for Boeing), subassemblies for EADS

for the support of the Ae 270 aircraft development), against which

and Embraer 170/190 door subassemblies for Latecoere played

The financial profit was significantly influenced by the situation

a provision in the amount of CZK 332 million was released, with

In 2008, Aero showed a profit of CZK 402 million, the highest

the most part in the revenue generation. As for the future,

on the capital markets in 2008, where profits and losses reflected

a share on the liquidation balance in the amount of CZK 16 million.

in the last six years. The equity as at December 31, 2008,

the production of a new Sikorsky helicopter type and increased

the movement of the exchange rate of the U.S. Dollar to the

amounted to CZK 1.8 billion (2007: CZK 1.3 billion).

deliveries for Alenia Aeronautica are in the pipeline, and further

Czech Crown – the fall of the U.S. Dollar in the first half of the

development of the Aerostructures Program is projected.

year, as well as its rally in the second.

The Military Program shared the revenues by 12%, mainly as
a result of delivering on the contracts with the Ministry of Defence
of the Czech Republic, aircraft storage and overhauls abroad.
The export reached the value of CZK 3,697 million and contributed
88% to the revenue. The growing share of export in the revenues
is caused by the higher volume of deliveries in aerostructures,
in particular the increase in the S-76C helicopter production and
deliveries of the C-27J center wing box for Alenia Aeronautica.

IN 2008, WE REACHED THE HIGHEST
PROFIT IN THE LAST SIX YEARS

1919

2009

24 |

| 25

REPORT ON BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES
PROPERTY STRUCTURE
AND FINANCING RESOURCES
In 2008, the total assets of Aero increased 33% compared to 2007,

In 2008, the fixed assets in the amount of CZK 1,029 million

The share of the equity on the total assets of the company was

Provisions and liabilities increased 32% up to 2,581 million,

up to the total amount (net) of CZK 4,370 million. Short-term

represented 24% of the total assets of Aero. Compared to 2007,

40.4% at the end of 2008. Entities participating in the share

driven mainly by drawing on the revolving loan facility

assets of CZK 3,182 million (i.e. 73% of the total assets)

their net book value was increased by CZK 25 million, mainly as

capital are TULAROSA a.s. (51%) and Salori Holding B.V. (49%).

for the financing of the Sikorsky production (CZK 521 million)

as at December 31, 2008, were made up from inventory

a result of purchase of properties for the airport development

TULAROSA, a part of the consolidated group Penta Investments

and a CZK 189 million year-on-year increase of current liabilities.

(CZK 1,334 million), short-term receivables (CZK 1,624 million)

in the amount of CZK 25 million and acquisition of individual

Limited, is the parent company. Compared to 2007, the equity

The total gearing of the company represents 59.1% of its value.

and short-term financial assets (CZK 224 million).

movable assets, causing an increase of CZK 34 million,

increased by CZK 476 million (37%). The increase was influenced

(CZK 23 million on accrued basis.)

mainly of the machine park. Compared to 2007, the intangibles

by retained earnings (CZK 224 million), a higher profit

Compared to 2007, the short-term assets increased 41%

in progress were CZK 12 million lower.

of the current year by CZK 166 million (totalling CZK 402 million),

and reached CZK 3,182 million – mainly as a result of an increase

lower differences arising from the revaluation of financial

in receivables from the controlling entity (to the amount

investments (IBIS) and the revaluation of hedging derivatives

of CZK 905 million). Receivables from business relations

(CZK 75 million), and by an increase of CZK 12 million

increased 36% (to CZK 632 million) mainly as a result

in the legal reserve fund.

of the higher deliveries of the S-76C++ helicopters; inventory
for material went up 15% and advances on inventory were up
significantly (CZK 144 million) due to a highly competitive price
offered by the largest supplier of the company. The short-term
financial assets decreased to CZK 224 million.

IN 2008, THE TOTAL ASSETS INCREASED 33%
COMPARED TO 2007

1919

2009
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REPORT ON BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES
HUMAN RESOURCES

ENVIRONMENT

In 2008, Aero continued in the iniciated process of restructuring

In 2008, Aero produced a total of 15.8 tons of pollutants (out of

and stabilization of employees. The average recalculated

which 7.7 tons of volatile organics, 6.7 tons of nitrogen oxide

number of employees in 2008 was 1,293 and the total number

and 1 ton of solid particles). The largest volume of emissions

of employees as at December 31, 2008, was 1,321. In 2008,

is attributed to the boiler plant, chemical plants and paint-shops.

more than 160 employees were recruited, mainly blue-collar

In 2007, the company paid CZK 25,200 on fees. Measurements

positions in the current and new production programs;

of all sources proved that in 2008 all emission standards were met.

and more than 180 employees left the Company.

Aero produced 948.84 tons of waste (out of which 348.05 tons

In 2008, the total staff turnover reached 2.2%, a decrease

and earned CZK 1,874,979 from the sale of its waste in 2008.

of dangerous waste), expended CZK 1,503,059 on waste disposal
of 3.5% compared to 2007. The average salary reached CZK 31.748,
representing a year-on-year increase of CZK 600.

In 2008, Aero consumed 99 thousand m2 of underground water
(out of which 7.8 thousand m2 for industry technology) and

In 2008, Aero put great emphasis on training and education

produced 57.8 thousand m2 of sewerage water. Water usage fees

of employees, not only in the areas required by law. The total

amounted to CZK 205,800. Water discharge fees were not assessed

training and education costs amounted to CZK 3,877,350 in 2008,

in the year 2008, because standards laid down in the Act No.

which translates into CZK 2,999 per employee.

254/2001 Coll., on waters, as amended, were not exceeded.

WE PUT GREAT EMPHASIS ON TRAINING
AND EDUCATION OF EMPLOYEES

1919

2009

AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON ANNUAL REPORT

1997
SINGLE-SEAT L-159
ADVANCED LIGHT COMBAT
AIRCRAFT MAIDEN FLIGHT

1919

2009
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AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON ANNUAL REPORT
To the Shareholders of AERO Vodochody a.s.:
I.

II.

We have audited the financial statements of AERO

We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Based on our audit, the accounting information presented in

We conducted our review in accordance with the applicable

Vodochody a.s. (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2008

Standards on Auditing and the related implementation guidance

the annual report is consistent, in all material respects,

International Standard on Review Engagements and the related

presented in the annual report of the Company on pages

issued by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.

with the financial statements described above.

implementation guidance issued by the Chamber of Auditors of

38 - 65, on which we have issued an auditors’ report dated

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

2 April 2008, presented in the annual report on pages 34 -35.

obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the information

In addition, we have reviewed the accuracy of the

perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether

presented in the annual report that describes the facts reflected

information contained in the report on related parties of

the report on related parties is free from material misstatement.

We have also audited the consistency of the annual report

in the financial statements is consistent, in all material respects,

AERO Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2008

The review is limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel,

with the financial statements described above.

with the financial statements.

presented in the annual report of the Company on pages

to analytical procedures applied to financial data and to examining,

68 - 69. The management of AERO Vodochody a.s. is

on a test basis, the accuracy of information, and thus provides

The management of AERO Vodochody a.s. is responsible

the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and
III.

for the accuracy of the annual report. Our responsibility is to

We have checked that the accounting information presented in

responsible for the preparation of the report on related

less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit

express, based on our audit, an opinion on the consistency

the annual report on pages 6 -27 is consistent with that contained

parties. Our responsibility is to issue a report based on

and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

in the audited financial statements as at 31 December 2008.

our review.

of the annual report with the financial statements.

Our work as auditors was confined to checking the annual report

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that

with the aforementioned scope and did not include a review

causes us to believe that the report on related parties of AERO

of any information other than that drawn from the audited

Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2008 is materially

accounting records of the Company. We believe that our audit

misstated.

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
2 April 2009, Prague, Czech Republic

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401
Represented by Partner

Magdalena Soucek
Auditor, License No. 1291
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2000
S-76 HELICOPTER
PRODUCTION LAUNCHED
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AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s.:

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

AERO Vodochody a.s., which comprise the balance sheet as

including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to the facts

at 31 December 2008, and the income statement and cash flow

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. As at 31

statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal

December 2008, the Company recorded equity of CZK 1,765,860

accounting policies and other explanatory notes. For details of

accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation

thousand and accumulated loss of CZK 4,080,558 thousand.

AERO Vodochody a.s. see Note 1 to the financial statements.

This responsibility includes designing, implementing and

of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures

In compliance with the Commercial Code, a company whose

maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

accumulated loss exceeds half of its basic capital must file for

presentation of financial statements that are free from material

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

bankruptcy or take measures aimed at reducing the loss.

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

The future of Company is outlined in Note 23 to the financial

applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

statements. The ability of the Company to continue as a going

estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

concern is contingent on the strategic decisions and successful

overall presentation of the financial statements.

development of the plans of the new shareholder of the Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

– Penta. The accompanying financial statements have been

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

concern entity and do not include any adjustments that might

accordance with the Act on Auditors and International Standards

result from this uncertainty.

on Auditing as amended by implementation guidance of the

OPINION

Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

material respects, the financial position of AERO Vodochody a.s.

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

as at 31 December 2008, and its financial performance and its

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting

2 April 2009, Prague, Czech Republic

principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

License No. 401
Represented by Partner

Magdalena Soucek
Auditor, License No. 1291
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gross

Current year
Provisions

Net

Prior year 2007
N et

TOTAL A SSETS
STOCK SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLE

7,731,891

-3,361,884

4,370,007

3,280,328

C.

A.
B.

FIXED ASSETS

2,979,005

-1,950,236

1,028,769

1,003,739

C. I.
C. I.

237,294

-230,576

6,718

6,984

186,295
49,955

-180,621
-49,955

5,674
0

4,311

1,044

1,721
952

B . I.
B. I.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Intangible assets
Foundation and organization expenses
Research and development
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets in progress
Advances granted for intangible assets

B . II.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Tangible assets
Land
Constructions
Separate movable items and groups of movable items
Perennial crops
Livestock
Other tangible assets
Tangible assets in progress
Advances granted for tangible assets
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property

B . III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Fi nanci al investments
Subsidiaries
Associates
Other long-term securities and interests
Loans to subsidiaries and associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term investments in progress
Advances granted for long-term investments

1,044

2,628,391
204,656
983,495
1,409,643

-1,718,560
0
-504,471
-1,208,153

909,831
204,656
479,024
201,490

880,598
179,460
492,163
168,123

5,875
24,542
180

-5,756

119
24,542
0

119
36,513
4,220

113,320
112,220
1,100

-1,100

112,220
112,220
0

116,157
116,157

-180

-1,100

Current year
Provisions

Net

Prior year 2007
Net

CU RRENT ASSETS

4,593,766

-1,411,648

3,182,118

2,253,086

Inventory
Materials
Work in progress and semi-finished production
Finished products
Livestock
Goods
Advances granted for inventory

2,731,536
1,871,165
687,567

-1,397,598
-1,154,690
-230,917

1,333,938
716,475
456,650

1,154,212
620,723
500,370

20,090
152,714

-2,882
-9,109

17,208
143,605

1,530
31,589

0

0

0

18,869

C. II.
C. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Long-term recei vables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Long-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Deferred tax asset

C. III.
C. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Short-term receivables
1,638,138
Trade receivables
639,669
Receivables from group companies with majority control
905,263
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Social security and health insurance
Due from government - tax receivables
20,792
Short-term advances granted
9,673
Unbilled revenue
60,837
Other receivables
1,904

C. IV.
C. IV. 1
2
3
4

Short-term financial assets
Cash
Bank accounts
Short-term securities and interests
Short-term financial assets in progress

224,092
10,261
213,831

D.

OTHER ASSETS - TEMPORA RY ACCOUNTS OF ASSETS
Accrued assets and deferred liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Unbilled revenue

D. I.
D. I.

1919

1
2
3
4
5
6

Gross

1
2
3

2009

18,869

1,624,088
632,482
905,263

792,964
465,441
211,751

20,792
2,940
60,837
1,774

12,926
29,528
22,140
51,178

0

224,092
10,261
213,831
0

287,041
6,235
280,806

159,120

0

159,120

23,503

159,120
13,162

0

159,120
13,162
0
145,958

23,503
15,877

145,958

-14,050
-7,187

-6,733
0
-130

7,626
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A.
A. I.
A. I.

1
2
3

Current year

Prior year
2007

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY

4,370,007
1,765,860

3,280,328
1,289,736

Basic capital
Registered capital
Own shares and own ownership interests (-)
Changes in basic capital

5,014,089
5,014,089

5,014,089
5,014,089

A. II.
A II. 1
2
3
4

Capital funds
Share premium (agio)
Other capital funds
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities
Gain or loss on revaluation of company transformations

-21,641
28,720
-50,361

353,824
450,000
28,720
-124,896

A III.
A III. 1
2

Reserve funds and other funds created from profit
Legal reserve fund
Statutory and other funds

228,039
211,531
16,508

216,251
199,743
16,508

A. IV.
IV. 1
2

Profit (loss) for the previous years
Retained earnings for the previous years
Accumulated loss of previous years

-3,856,216
224,342
-4,080,558

-4,530,181
377
-4,530,558

A. V.

Profit (loss) for the year (+ / -)

401,589

235,753

B.
B. I.
B. I.

1
2
3
4

Provisions
Provisions created under special legislation
Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for corporate income tax
Other provisions

Prior year
2007

2,580,750

1,950,389

257,794

187,164

257,794

187,164

564,882

714,822

564,882

714,822

625,958
342 228

437,190
245,389

32,412
17,104
6,189
80,996

27,424
17,103
8,683
62,169

92,179
54,850

74,887
1,535

1,132,116

611,213

1,132,116

611,213

B. II.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Long-term liabili ties
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Advances received
Bonds payable
Notes payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability

B. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Current liabili ties
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Liabilities to employees
Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance
Due to government – taxes and subsidies
Advances received
Bonds payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities

B. IV.
B. IV. 1
2
3

Bank loans and borrowings
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Borrowings

C.

OTHER LIABILITIES - TEMPORARY ACCOUNTS OF LIABILITIES

23,397

40,203

Accrued liabiliti es and deferred assets
Accruals
Deferred income

23,397
23,011
386

40,203
33,149
7,054

C. I.
C. I.

1919

LIABILITIES

Current year

1
2

2009
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I.
A.

1
2

Revenue from sale of goods
Cost of goods sold

Current year

Prior year
2007

356,383
336,583

289,481
281,975

19,800

7,506

+

GROSS MARGIN

II.
II. 1
2
3

Production
Revenue from sale of finished products and services
Change in inventory produced internally
Own work capitalized
Production related consumption
Consumption of material and energy
Services

3,761,832
3,744,746
-30,910
47,996
2,615,498
2,267,229
348,269

3,709,820
4,017,506
-319,908
12,222
2,716,718
2,375,566
341,152

VA LUE ADDED

1,166,134

1,000,608

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of company or cooperation bodies
Social security and health insurance
Other social costs
Taxes and charges
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Revenue from sale of intangible and tangible fi xed assets and materials
Revenues from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Revenue from sale of materials
Net book value of intangible and tangible fi xed assets and materials sold
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold
Materials sold
Change in reserves and provisions relating to operations and in prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Other operating revenues
Other operating expenses
Transfer of operating revenues
Transfer of operating expenses

674,196
497,527
360
165,293
11,016
4,863
82,564
100,719
85,760
14,959
87,422
74,121
13,301
69,050
3,087,786
3,138,732

717,222
527,290
325
177,388
12,219
3,640
79,625
44,920
22,293
22,627
11,784
1,969
9,815
-199,025
1,978,174
2,046,310

B.
B.
B.

1
2
+

J.

K.
L.
M.
N.

C.
C.
C.
C.
C.
D.
E.

1
2
3
4
1
1
III.
III. 1
2

F.
F.
F.
G.

1
2
1
IV. 1
H.
2
V. 1
I.
2

O.
P.

*

PROFIT OR LOSS ON OPERATING ACTIVITIES

VI. 1
2
VII.
VII. 1
2
3
VIII.1
2
IX. 1
2
1
X. 1
2
XI. 1
2
XII. 1
2

Revenue from sale of securities and interests
Securities and interests sold
Income from financial investments
Income from subsidiaries and associates
Income from other long-term securities and interests
Income from other financial investments
Income from short-term financial assets
Expenses related to financial assets
Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Change in reserves and provisions relating to financial activities
Interest income
Interest expense
Other finance income
Other finance cost
Transfer of finance income
Transfer of finance cost

*

PROFIT OR LOSS ON FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Q.
Q.
Q.

R.
S.
S.
S.

1
2

Prior year
2007

297,812

364,146

20,131
20,131

0

19
510,134
78,019
42,445
-332,190
65,533
55,811
565,914
359,725

364

-23,900
30,137
86,482
146,886
242,469

93,691

-127,664

0

0

391,503

236,482

**

PROFIT OR LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVIES AFTER TAXATION

XIII.1
2
1
1
2

Extraordinary gains
Extraordinary losses
Tax on extraordinary profit or loss
- due
- deferred

17,196
7,110
0

2,542
3,271
0

*

EXTRAORDINARY PROFIT OR LOSS

10,086

-729

T.

1919

Tax on profit or loss on ordi nary activities
- due
- deferred

Current year

1

Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)

***

PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEA R (+/-)

401,589

235,753

****

PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

401,589

235,753

2009
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Current year

Prior year
2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Z.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

PROFIT OR LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION (+/-)
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION,
CHANGES IN WORKING CA PITAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

A *
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

2.
2.
2.
2.
2.
2.

Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provi ded by or used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
Change in provisions
Change in reserves
Foreign exchange differences
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest expense and interest income
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received)

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Change in non-cash components of working capital
Change in inventory
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, short-term loans and in accruals and deferred income

A **

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION,
INTEREST PAID AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

A. 3. 1.
A. 4. 1.
A. 5. 1.

Interest paid
Tax paid
Gains and losses on extraordinary items

A ***

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1919

Current year

Prior year
2007

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans granted
Interest received
Dividends received

125,791
85,760
-646,901
25,291

-82,487
22,293
-212,576
7,997

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-410,059

-264,773

452,562

-1,345,087

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
391,503

236,482

-306,502
126,184
-333,772
70,630
22,209
-11,639
-9,722
-170,392

232,969
84,809
-220,044
-2,915
-7,900
-20,324
56,345
342,998

85,001

469,451

-156,546
-172,486
-182,878
-54,187
96,839
156,166

1 027,402
344,784
337,876
-74,824
-61,552
481,118

-71,545

1,496,853

B.
B.
B.
B.
B.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

B ***

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
C. 1. 1.

Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans

C. 2. 1.
C. 2. 2.
C. 2. 3.

Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
Dividends or profit sharing paid
Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash

C ***

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

452,562

-1,345,087

F.
P.
R.

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVA LENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVA LENTS AT END OF YEAR

-62,949
287,041
224,092

-112,836
399,877
287,041

-33,907
171
-105,452

1,497,024

2009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY
AERO Vodochody a.s. (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated
on 2 January 1991 in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered office
is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic
and the business registration number (IČ) is 00010545.
The Company is involved in cooperation in production of helicopters
and aerostrustures, foreign trade of military products, development,
production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat jets,
airport operation and other aircraft related work. With the exception
of the change in the scope of the Company’s business, no significant
changes were made to the Commercial Register entry in 2008.
Shareholders who hold a 10% or greater interest in the Company’s basic
capital are as follows:
TULAROSA a.s.
51.00%
Salori Holding B.V.
49.00%
The parent company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located
at Na Příkopě 583/15, Praha 1, Czech Republic.
The Company is included in the consolidated group of Penta Investments
Limited with the registered office in Agias Fylaxeos & Polygnostou, 212,
C&I CENTER, P.C. 3803, Limassol, Cyprus.
The Company is the parent company of the AERO Vodochody Group
and the accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate
financial statements.
The Company has concluded neither control agreement nor agreement
on profit distribution with the parent company.
Members of the statutory bodies as at 31 December 2008 were as follows:
Board of Directors
Chairman: Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Member: Ing. Petr Brychta
Member: Ondřej Benáček
Supervisory Board
Chairman: Mgr. Václav Štajner
Member: Bc. Martin Prachař
Member: Jan Borýsek
In 2008 there were no changes in the Company’s statutory bodies.
The Company has no foreign branch.

1919

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines as applicable
for 2008 and 2007.
3. EXPLANATION ADDED FOR TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting
principles and standards generally accepted in the Czech Republic.
Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform
with generally accepted accounting principles and standards in the
Czech Republic may not conform with generally accepted accounting
principles in other countries.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2008
and 2007 financial statements are as follows:
A) INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related
expenses.
Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized
over their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets (with a cost
of less than CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried
only in a subsidiary ledger.
Amortization
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated
useful life of the related asset. The useful economic lives are as follows:

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights

Years
3
15

B) TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Purchased tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand are
recorded at their acquisition cost, which consists of purchase price, freight,
customs duties and other related costs.
Internally-developed tangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated
cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and production overheads.
Interest and other financial expenses incurred in the construction of tangible
fixed assets are also capitalized.
Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement
cost and are recorded with a corresponding credit to the ‘Other capital
funds account’ on the date of acquisition.
The replacement cost of these assets is set on the basis of the cost known
at the moment of the respective asset acquisition.
The costs of technical improvements are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance
expenses are expensed as incurred.

D) INVENTORY
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using
the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include
acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc.).
Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard
cost, which approximates actual. The cost of inventory produced internally
includes direct material and labor costs and production overhead costs.
Effective from 1 January 2007, the Company changed the valuation method
of work-in-progress and semi-finished products regarding the amount
of allocated overheads. The result of the change was a diminution in
inventory value of work-in-progress and semi-finished products of
CZK 271,701 thousand and related decrease of Company’s operating profit.
Production overhead costs include energy, repairs and maintenance,
telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production
services and materials and are allocated based on direct labor hours.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated
useful life of the related asset. The useful economic lives are as follows:

E) RECEIVABLES
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value
after allowance for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance account
are charged to income.

Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangible fixed assets

Years
30 – 45
10 – 30
8 – 20
4 – 15
5 – 20

C) FINANCIAL A SSETS
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand
and at bank.
Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership interests
and shareholdings.
Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes
the purchase price and direct costs related to the acquisition, e.g. fees
and commissions paid to agents and stock exchanges. In respect of debt
securities, interest income is recorded observing the matching and accrual
principles. Accrued interest income is included in the relevant securities
account.
As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant
influence are valued at acquisition cost; the foreign currency revaluation
amounts are recorded in equity through the ’revaluation of assets and
liabilities’ caption.
If there is a decrease in the carrying value of long-term financial assets
that are not revalued at the balance sheet date, the difference is considered
a temporary diminution in value and is recorded as an allowance.

2009

F) DERIVATIVES
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other
short-term receivables or payables, as appropriate, in the accompanying
balance sheet.
Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging
derivatives.
The latter are designated as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value
of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow must offset, in whole or in part,
the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from the hedged item.
In addition, there must be formal documentation of the hedging relationship
at inception and the Company must prove that the hedging relationship
is highly effective. In all other cases, derivatives are recognized as
held-for-trading.
Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are reported
in income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value
hedges are also recognized in income, together with the change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are
taken to equity and reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on
revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
reported in income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G) EQUITY
The basic capital of the Company is stated at the amount recorded in the
Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court. Any increase
or decrease in the basic capital made pursuant to the decision of the
General Meeting which was not entered in the Commercial Register as at
the financial statements date is recorded through changes in basic capital.
Contributions in excess of basic capital are recorded as share premium.
Other capital funds are created pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation. In accordance with the Commercial Code, the Company
creates a legal reserve fund from profit.
In the first year in which profit is generated, a joint-stock company should
allocate 20% of profit after tax (however, not more than 10% of basic
capital) to the legal reserve fund. In subsequent years, the legal reserve
fund is allocated 5% of profit after tax until the fund reaches 20% of basic
capital. These funds can only be used to offset losses.
H) PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are carried at their nominal
values. Amounts resulting from the revaluation of financial derivatives
at fair value are shown in other payables.
Short-term and long-term loans are recorded at their nominal values.
Any portion of long-term debt which is due within one year of the balance
sheet date is classified as short-term debt.
Contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the balance sheet because
significant uncertainties exist with respect to the amount, title or timing
of the expected outflow of benefits are described in Note 19.
I) FINANCIAL LEASES
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments
and capitalizing the residual value of the leased assets when the lease
contract expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments
paid in advance are recorded as prepaid expenses and amortized over
the lease term.
J) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns
at the exchange rate prevailing as at the transaction date.
On the balance sheet date monetary items are adjusted to the exchange
rates as published by the Czech National Bank as at 31 December.
Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses were charged
or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.
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K) RECOGNITION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they
are recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the related goods
or services occurs, regardless of when the related monetary flow arises.
The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or
allowances against risks, losses or physical damage that are known as at
the financial statements’ date.
Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed
contract method (or as specified in the contract).

4. FIXED ASSETS
A) INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)

L) INCOME TAX
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory
tax rate and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by the
appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g. non-deductible
provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences between
book and tax depreciation, etc.).
The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate income
tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only when it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
2008 Total
2007 Total

M) SUBSIDIES
In 2008 and 2007, the Company received subsidies from the government
of CZK 12,327 thousand and CZK 14,394 thousand, respectively which were
accounted for as other operating revenues.
Received subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment
enables the Company to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt and utilization.
N) EMISSION ALLOWANCES
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets,
which are not amortized and are valued at cost or replacement cost when
acquired free-of-charge.
The “use of emission allowances” is recorded at least as at the financial
statements’ date corresponding to the volume of accounting unit’s
emissions in the calendar year. The first free-of-charge acquisition is
recorded as subsidy, which is not deducted from the cost of intangible
fixed assets. This “subsidy” is recognized into income at the time and
in the amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.

COST
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
2008 Total
2007 Total

At begi nning of year
179,696
49,955
1,721
952
232,324
232,202

Additions
4,169
5,647
9,816
3,695

At beginni ng of year
(175,385)
(49,955)
(225,340)
(218,952)

Disposals
(4,846)
(4,846)
(3,573)

Transfers
6,599
(6,599)
-

At end of year
186,295
49,955
1,044
237,294
232,324

Amortization during year
(5,236)
(5,236)
(6,388)

At end of year
(180,621)
(49,955)
(230,576)
(225,340)

Net book value
5,674
1,044
6,718
6,984

Patents, royalties and similar rights are amortized over their useful lives as specified in the relevant contracts.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the total value of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was CZK 5,292
thousand and CZK 5,273 thousand at acquisition cost, respectively.
Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 183,799 thousand are fully amortized as at 31 December 2008.
Other intangible fixed assets represent carbon emission allowances (“allowances”). The Company was issued free of charge allowances constituting the right
to emit 6,288 tones of gas emissions in 2008. These emission allowances were valued at their replacement cost totaling CZK 3,790 thousand.
See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2008. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):
Value of emission allowances Other operating revenues Other operating expenses
Other liabi lities
At beginning of year
1,721
(1,721)
Free of charge allocation of allowances
3,790
(3,790)
Emission allowances required to cover the level
(2,367)
2,367
(2,367)
2,367
of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2008
Return of allowances
(2,100)
(2,100)
Total as at 31 December 2008
1,044
2,367
(2,367)
(1,044)
See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2007. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):
Value of emission allowances Other operating revenues Other operating expenses
Other liabi lities
At beginning of year
5,001
(5,001)
Free of charge allocation of allowances
293
(293)
Emission allowances required to cover the level
(3,573)
3,573
(3,573)
3,573
of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2007
Total as at 31 December 2007
1,721
3,573
(3,573)
(1,721)

2009
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B) TA NGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)
COST
Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
2008 Total
2007 Total
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
2008 Total
2007 Total

At beginning of year
179,460
1,002,436
1,172,560
192,096
17,460
5,875
49,946
4,220
2,624,053
2,570,526

Additions
237,694
33,476
271,170
160,319

At beginning Depreciation Cost of sales
of year during year or liquidation
(496,857)
(25,868)
(34,179)
(1,014,251)
(41,079)
(27,551)
(26,486)
(10,254)
(16,814)
(127)
(460)
(5,756)
(1,560,164)
(77,328)
(62,190)
(1,590,142)
(73,237)
(1,969)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the total value of small tangible fixed
assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was
CZK 726,150 thousand and CZK 714,816 thousand at acquisition cost,
respectively.
Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 718,309 thousand are fully depreciated
as at 31 December 2008.
The Company has adjusted the carrying amount of certain tangible assets
for a diminution in value through an allowance charged against income
(see Note 7). Allowances relate to buildings and Ae 270 aircraft and were
established in the amount of 100% of their net book value as the Company
does not expect to use these assets in the future.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, a part of the buildings with a cost
of CZK 3,409 thousand and CZK 93,393 thousand respectively, and with
a net book value of CZK 1,510 thousand and CZK 50,748 thousand,
respectively, were located outside the Company’s production plant (flats,
accommodation facilities). The decrease in the value of buildings located
outside the Company’s production plant was caused in particular by the
sale of objects in Kralupy nad Vltavou.
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C) LONG-TERM FINANCIA L INVESTMENTS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)
Disposals
(2,896)
(63,061)
(111,996)
(541)
(13,501)
(37,321)
(37,516)
(266,832)
(106,792)
Disposals
63,061
111,996
541
13,501
189,099
105,529

Transfers,
other
(345)

Transfers
28,092
44,120
91,910
61,655
(225,777)
At end
of year
(493,843)
(970,885)
(36,199)
(3,900)
(5,756)
(1,510,583)
(1,560,164)

At end of year
204,656
983,495
1,152,474
253,210
3,959
5,875
24,542
180
2,628,391
2,624,053

Allowances
(10,628)
(197,169)
(180)
(207,977)
(183,291)

Net book
value
204,656
479,024
181,589
19,842
59
119
24,542
909,831
880,598

On 8 December 2005, the Company signed a general agreement for
post-warranty support of L-159 and L-39 aircraft (see Note 19) with the
Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic pursuant to which the Company
committed itself to hold a significant portion of fixed assets (particularly
land, production halls, airport and other assets necessary for maintaining
the ability to provide service repairs for the Army of the Czech Republic).
The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 417,581
thousand and their net book value was CZK 214,922 thousand as at 31
December 2008. This easement has not been entered in the Land Register.
On 22 October 2007, AERO Vodochody a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s.,
entered into a contract for the establishment of the right of pledge securing
the Company’s immovable assets (buildings and land) with respect to the
provided export loan (see Note 14). As at 31 December 2008, the acquisition
cost of the assets pledged amounted to CZK 274,281 thousand and the net
book value amounted to CZK 155,850 thousand. The acquisition cost of
land was CZK 48,473 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings was CZK
225,808 thousand whereas their net book value amounted to CZK 107,377
thousand.
As at 31 December 2008, certain tangible fixed assets (industrial waste
storage, exchanger station, fuel storage, etc.) were no longer in service.
These assets had an original cost of CZK 29,995 thousand and net book
value of CZK 10,908 thousand. The Company has adjusted the carrying
amount of these tangible assets to zero (see Note 7).

Summary of changes in long-term financial investments:
Balance as at
Additions
31/ 12/ 2006
Subsidiaries
471,529
2,000
Associates
1,100
Allowances
(357,190)
23,900
Total
115,439
25,900

Disposals Revaluation
-

The Company established an allowance in the amount of CZK 1,100
thousand for the financial investment in Letov, a.s.
For the purpose of completing the development and production of
the Ae 270 aircraft, the Company founded a joint venture IBIS Aerospace
Ltd. together with Aerospace Industrial Development Corporation,
Taiwan (AIDC) in 1997. The contribution comprised of aircraft development
results with a cost of CZK 173,425 thousand, which, however, was valued
at USD 23,000 thousand (CZK 796,628 thousand). Under the deed of
foundation, the Company contributed in 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively,
an additional USD 2,000 thousand (CZK 70,760 thousand), USD 2,000
thousand (CZK 76,968 thousand) and USD 5,000 thousand (CZK 188,981
thousand).
Onwards 2001, the Company continued test flights of the Ae 270
aircraft. During the development stage the Company adjusted technical
requirements of the plane in order to be competitive and compatible
with the latest market trends. Meeting these requirements resulted in
the installation of additional technical equipment. In 2002, the Company
decided to suspend the development of the aircraft Ae 270P and to
continue with the development of the aircraft equipped with a more
powerful engine (P&W PT6-66). A prototype enhanced with this engine
was successfully tested on 25 February 2003. In 2003 and 2004, the
development of the aircraft continued and in December 2005 and February
2006 the Company obtained certification from the European Aviation Safety
Agency (EASA) and from the American Federal Aviation Authority (FAA),
respectively. In spite of the significant concentration of production and
development capacities during the final stage of development, the original
certification schedule was not met.

2009

(25,182)
(25,182)

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2007
448,347
1,100
(333,290)
116,157

Additions
-

Disposals Revaluation
(336,127)
332,190
(3,937)

-

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2008
112,220
1,100
(1,100)
112,220

During the testing phase the Company identified that several technical
parameters of the plane are low-tech and far behind the current market
requirements. It was decided that simultaneously with the production of
this plane in the current version the Company would begin with the
preparation for the development of a new upgraded version, which would
meet all current market requirements. Following several months of
unsuccessful searching for a new investor, the General Meeting of
shareholders of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. held on 1 November 2007 decided
on the process of a voluntary winding-up of the company to be finished in
2008. The process of winding-up was completed as at 11 April 2008.
As at 31 December 2007, for the sake of prudence the Company
established an allowance for the financial investment in IBIS Aerospace
Ltd. of CZK 332,190 thousand, which represented the difference between
the gross book value of this investment and its estimated net realizable
value of CZK 3,740 thousand.
On the basis of an agreement between the partners in the joint venture,
IBIS Aerospace Limited was terminated as at 11 April 2008. The Company
received a share in the liquidation remainder totaling CZK 20,131 thousand
(in the form of a bank transfer of USD 218 thousand, i.e. CZK 3,740
thousand and tangible fixed assets of CZK 16,391 thousand (A 100%
allowance was created against the returned tangible fixed assets
(see Note 7)). The share in the liquidation remainder was classified
as income from the financial investment.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 WERE A S FOLLOWS (IN CZK THOUSANDS):
Name
Registered office
Percentage of ownership
Total net assets
Equity
Basic capital and capital funds
Funds created from profit
Retained earnings
Loss for the current year
Acquisition cost of share
Nominal value of share
Intrinsic value of share

Technometra Radotín, a.s.
Prague 5
100
135,111
118,315
219,426
5,862
(92,264)
(14,710)
110,220
219,426
118,315

Financial information about Technometra Radotín, a.s. was obtained from
the company’s standalone audited financial statements as at 31 December
2008.
Financial information about Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from the
company’s standalone unaudited financial statements as at 31 December
2008. The sole shareholder of Letiště Vodochody a.s. is AERO Vodochody

Letov, a.s.
Prague 9
42.6
1,100
-

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Odolena Voda
100
2,010
1,901
2,000
(99)
2,000
2,000
1,901

a.s. which held 10 registered shares with a nominal value of CZK 200
thousand per share. On 3 October 2008, the sole shareholder decided
on a basic capital increase of Letiště Vodochody a.s. by subscription of
new shares, which will be paid through a non-monetary contribution, i.e.
in the form of real estate in the value of CZK 1,857,800 thousand. The basic
capital increase was performed as at 1 January 2009 (see Note 26).

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 WERE A S FOLLOWS (IN CZK THOUSANDS):
Name
Registered office
Percentage of ownership
Total net assets
Equity
Basic capital and capital funds
Funds created from profit
Retained earnings
Loss for the current year
Acquisition cost of share / interest
Nominal value of share / interest
Intrinsic value of share / interest

Technometra Radotín, a.s.
Prague 5
100
152,129
133,024
219,426
5,862
(43,803)
(48,461)
110,220
219,426
133,024

Financial information about Technometra Radotín, a.s. was obtained from
the company’s standalone audited financial statements as at 31 December
2007.
As at 31 December 2007, the Board of Directors of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. did
not approve the financial statements of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. for the year
ended 31 December 2007. With respect to the planned winding-up of IBIS
Aerospace Ltd., the Company established an allowance reducing the value
of interest in IBIS Aerospace Ltd. to its estimated net realizable value.

IBIS Aerospace Ltd.
British Virgin Islands
50
336,127
-

Letov, a.s.
Prague 9
42.6
1,100
-

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Odolena Voda
100
2,000
2,000
2,000
-

Financial information about Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from
the company’s standalone unaudited financial statements as at 31
December 2007. Letiště Vodochody a.s. was incorporated
in the Commercial Register on 30 November 2007.
As at 31 December 2008 the Company provided loans to and received
loans from subsidiaries and associates (see Note 22).

5. INVENTORY
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has been written down to its
estimated net realizable value by an allowance account. The allowance is
determined by management based on an inventory aging analysis and the
analysis of its future usability (see Note 7).
Allowances against
Ae 270
L-159
L-39, L-59
Sikorsky Program
Not-assigned material
Other inventory
Total

Materi als
330,935
325,099
411,168
26,726
20,566
40,196
1,154,690

Work-in-progress, semi-fi nished products and goods
131,587
88,248
8,708
544
4,712
233,799

6. RECEIVABLES
Allowances against outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful
were charged to income based on the analysis in 2008 and 2007,
respectively (see Note 7).
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, receivables overdue for more than
180 days totaled CZK 5,612 thousand and CZK 5,414 thousand, respectively.
The Company wrote off irrecoverable receivables of CZK 1,118 thousand
and CZK 5,184 thousand
in 2008 and 2007, respectively, due to cancellation of bankruptcy
proceedings, unsatisfying the claims in bankruptcy proceedings, etc.
In 2008 and 2007, the Company sold receivables of CZK 3,034,027
thousand and CZK 1,945,473 thousand, respectively.

The income from the sales of the receivables was CZK 3,018,610 thousand
and CZK 1,935,656 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively. The nominal
values of these receivables and income from the sales of these receivables
are reflected in Other operating expenses and Other operating revenues,
respectively in the accompanying Income statement.
As at 31 December 2007 other receivables comprise in particular positive
fair values of outstanding hedging derivatives (see Note 16).
As at 31 December 2007, long-term advances granted include a contractual
deposit in favor of a foreign supplier.
Unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loan
to Penta Investments Limited (see Note 22).
Receivables from related parties (see Note 22).

7. ALLOWANCES
Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets
(see Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the allowance accounts (in CZK thousands):

Allowances against
Tangible fixed assets
Long-term financial investments
Inventory
Advances granted for inventory
Advances - other
Receivables – legal
Receivables – other

Balance
as at
31/ 12/ 2006
158,507
357,190
1,626,859
26,558
2,128
3,263

Additions

Deductions

106,344
111,663
102
1,752

(81,560)
(23,900)
(315,708)
(18,155)
(548)

Balance
as at
31/ 12/ 2007
183,291
333,290
1,422,814
8,505
2,128
4,467

Legal allowances are created in compliance with the Act on Provisions and are tax deductible.
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Advances granted for inventory
5,141
3,354
614
9,109

2009

Additions

Deductions

118,713
71,986
604
6,733
2,444

(94,027)
(332,190)
(106,311)
(1,722)

Balance
as at
31/ 12/ 2008
207,977
1,100
1,388,489
9,109
6,733
2,128
5,189
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8. SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at 31 December, the Company had the following restricted cash balances (in CZK thousands):

Bank
Česká národní banka
Deutsche Bank AG Praha
Česká spořitelna, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
Total

Currency
USD
USD
USD
USD

2008
Amount in foreign
currency (in thousands)
1,323
287
700
-

Amount
in CZK thousands
25,588
5,551
13,542
44,681

2007
Amount i n foreign
currency (in thousands)
1,605
416
308
38
-

Amount
in CZK thousands
29,007
7,521
5,565
694
42,787

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see Note 14).
9. OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid insurance fees and
overhead costs, which are charged to income for the year in which they
were incurred.

As at 31 December 2008, unbilled revenues include in particular
unbilled sales of services and an estimation related to a ceded receivable;
in addition, unbilled revenues include a commission for offset program
of USD 2,493 thousand, i.e. CZK 48,226 thousand, reduced by received
advances of USD 1,586 thousand, i.e. CZK 30,684 thousand.
As at 31 December 2007, unbilled revenues include in particular unbilled
sales of services. Revenues are recognised to income for the year in which
they were incurred.

10. EQUITY
The basic capital of the Company comprises 2,322,314 priority shares in
materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 2,690,000 registered
shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 887,366
registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 2 and 1
priority registered share in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 2.

The movements in the capital accounts during 2008 and 2007 were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2006
Number of shares
3,577,366
Basic capital
2,691,775
Share premium
Other capital funds
28,720
Differences arising from revaluation of assets and liabilities (148,825)
Legal reserve fund
199,743
Other funds
16,508
Retained earnings
377
Accumulated loss
(9,243,914)

Increase

Decrease

2,322,315
2,322,314
6,127,686
49,111
964,330

(5,677,686)
(25,182)
(5,677,686)

In 2007, gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities arose due to the
revaluation of the financial investment IBIS Aerospace Ltd. (see Note 4c)
and the revaluation of hedging derivatives (see Note 16). In 2008 gain or
loss on revaluation arose due to the revaluation of hedging derivatives
(see Note 16).
On 8 February 2007, the sole shareholder TULAROSA a.s. decided on
a basic capital increase of the Company by subscription of 2,322,314
new shares with a nominal value of CZK 1,000.
The issue rate of the shares was CZK 8,000,000 thousand, i.e. CZK 3,445
per share. All the new shares were subscribed to by Salori Holding B.V.
and paid by the offset of receivables from AERO Vodochody a.s. to Salori
Holding B.V. (see Note 12). The basic capital increase was entered in the
Commercial Register on 22 March 2007.

Loss for 2006
Compensation of accumulated loss from share premium
Transfer to accumulated loss of previous years
Allocation to legal reserve fund
Undistributed profits added to retained earnings
Retained earnings as at 31/ 12/ 2007
Accumulated loss as at 31/ 12/ 2007
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Other capital funds consist of the fund balance after the financial
restructuring made in previous years. Other funds from profit were
created for an issue of employee shares (however this issue has been
abandoned) and social fund.

(964,330)
5,677,686
(964,330)
377
(4,530,558)

2009

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2007
5,899,681
5,014,089
450,000
28,720
(124,896)
199,743
16,508
377
(4,530,558)

Increase

Decrease

74,535
11,788
223,965
450,000

(450,000)
-

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2008
5,899,681
5,014,089
28,720
(50,361)
211,531
16,508
224,342
(4,080,558)

The General Meeting held on 7 December 2007 decided to compensate
the accumulated loss of previous years in the amount of CZK 5,677,686
thousand from share premium.
On 7 December 2007 the Company’s General Meeting decided on a basic
capital increase by subscription of a new share with a nominal value of
CZK 2 and an issue rate of CZK 450,000 thousand. The share was subscribed
to by Salori Holding B.V. and paid by the offset of receivables from AERO
Vodochody a.s. to Salori Holding B.V. (see Note 12). The basic capital
increase was entered in the Commercial Register on 30 January 2008.
The Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 April 2008 decided to
compensate the accumulated loss of previous years in the amount of
CZK 450,000 thousand from share premium.
The Annual General Meetings held on 19 August 2008, 17 April 2008, 7
December 2007 and 18 July 2007, respectively approved the following profit
distribution for 2007, loss compensation for 2006 and compensation of the
accumulated loss of previous years (in CZK thousands):
Profi t for 2007
235,753
Compensation of accumulated loss from share premium 450,000
Transfer to accumulated loss of previous years
Allocation to legal reserve fund
11,788
Undistributed profits added to retained earnings
223,965
Retained earnings as at 31/ 12/ 2008
224,342
Accumulated loss as at 31/ 12/ 2008
(4,080,558)
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11. PROVISIONS
The movements in the provision accounts were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Provisions
Contractual charges and penalties
Guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1
Overhaul Tunis
Ae 270 contract
Technometra orders
Staff bonuses
Provision for accrued vacation
Sikorsky guarantee repairs
Guarantee repairs Thailand
Provision for bank guarantee Egypt
Total

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2006
67,040
2,086
18,422
2,141
8,371
9,591
55,580
680
26,168
190,079

Additions

Deductions

20,429
2,859
26,940
64,562
2,496
117,286

(33,885)
(1,543)
(7,552)
(2,141)
(8,371)
(62,854)
(348)
(3,507)
(120,201)

Provision for guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1
The provision for guarantee repairs of L-159 light combat aircraft was
established to cover the expected amount of repairs of the 72 aircraft sold
to the Army of the Czech Republic. In 2008 and 2007, the Company released
a portion of the provision based on the volume of completed repairs.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the remaining part of the provision was
adjusted to cover the costs for additional post guarantee repairs for which
the Company has been contractually obliged, the so-called “bulletins”.
In 2007 a provision for guarantee repairs was created with respect to
upgrading of four aircraft L-159 to L-159T1 for the Army of the Czech
Republic. The balance of provisions as at 31 December 2008 represents
an estimation of future repairs.
Provisions for contract Ae 270 and Technometra orders
The Company does not plan to produce a significant quantity of Ae 270
aircraft in the current version. Accordingly, in 2005 the management of
the Company established a provision of CZK 45,557 thousand for fixed
contracts and placed orders for material to be purchased from third
parties, which will not be used. In 2008 and 2007, the original provision
was reduced by the value of materials used and cancelled orders by
agreement with suppliers.
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12. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at 31 December, the Company had the following other long-term payables (in CZK thousands):
Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2007
53,584
3,402
10,870
26,940
11,299
58,076
332
22,661
187,164

Additions

Deductions

5,200
35,887
63,719
105,478
1,589
211,873

(43,633)
(2,300)
(5,435)
(26,940)
(62,603)
(332)
(141,243)

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2008
5,200
9,951
1,102
5,435
35,887
12,415
163,554
24,250
257,794

Provision for accrued vacation
In 2008, the Company recorded a provision for accrued vacation totaling
CZK 12,415 thousand.
In 2007, the Company recorded a provision for accrued vacation of CZK
11,299 thousand.
Sikorsky guarantee repairs
The Company established a provision in the amount of estimated costs for
expected guarantee repairs related to the Sikorsky helicopter deliveries.
In 2008 a constructional defect affecting 193 Sikorsky helicopters was
detected, which was caused by a failure in the implementation of the
helicopter design. For the sake of prudence, the Company established
a provision for the elimination of the constructional defect in the total
amount of CZK 88,893 thousand.
Provision for bank guarantee Egypt
The Company created a provision for the estimated loss related to the use
of a bank guarantee issued in favor of the Ministry of Defence of Egypt.

Terms/Conditions
Maturity: 2059; Floating interest rate,
up to 140% of the CNB discount rate

Payables to Salori Holding B.V.

2008

Total
On 7 January 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an
agreement on the change in provisions on loan repayment. Accordingly,
the companies agreed to replace the existing fixed interest rate by a fee
based on the financial result of the Company before taxes and interest
(EBIT). However, the maximum fee shall not exceed the amount
corresponding to 140% of the Czech National Bank discount rate times
the unpaid loan principal. In addition, the maturity of the loan was
postponed to 31 January 2059.
On 30 November 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an
agreement on waiving a portion of the loan totaling CZK 150,000 thousand.

2007

564,882

714,822

564,882

714,822

The Company recorded waived part of loan principal to Other finance
income in the accompanying Income statement.
The interest expense relating to the loan from Salori Holding B.V. for 2008
and 2007 was CZK 20,451 thousand and CZK 82,469 thousand, respectively.
As at 27 March 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an
agreement (Settlement Agreement) on waiving of interest of CZK 20,391
thousand for period from 20 January 2007 to 6 March 2007. The Company
recorded waived interest to Other finance income in the accompanying
Income statement.

In 2008 and 2007, the changes related to a long-term payable to Salori Holding B.V. were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Loan
Interest
Total

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2006
10,122,723
304,717
10,427,440

Capitalization of
loan and interest
(8,218,157)
(231,843)
8,450,000

Loan interest
82,469
82,469

On 4 September 2007, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded
a payable subordination agreement concerning the payable that the
Company has to Salori Holding B.V. Pursuant to the agreement, the
payable to Salori Holding B.V. shall be subordinated to the payable

13. CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company had overdue current
payables totaling CZK 64,709 thousand and CZK 76,938 thousand,
respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular, materials in transit, supplies of
material and services, which are charged to income for the year in which
they were incurred.

2009

Loan
repayment
(1,345,087)
(1,345,087)

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2007
559,479
155,343
714,822

Waiving of principal
and interest
(150,000)
(20,391)
(170,391)

Loan interest
20,451
20,451

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2008
409,479
155,403
564,882

recorded by AERO Vodochody a.s. with respect to the loans granted to
AERO Vodochody a.s. by the bank (Česká exportní banka, a.s.). AERO
Vodochody a.s. may redeem the subordinated payable only after it has
settled the liability arising from the loan.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, advances received include in particular
an advance payment from Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation for the production
of aerospace components (cable assemblies) and an advance payment
from Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. for the production of aircraft parts.
As at 31 December 2008, the Company had liabilities of CZK 17,104
thousand owing to social security and health insurance premiums.
As at 31 December 2008 Other liabilities comprise in particular negative
fair values of outstanding hedging derivatives (see Note 16).
Payables to related parties (see Note 22).
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14. BANK LOANS AND BORROWINGS
As at 22 October 2007, the Company signed a loan agreement with Česká
exportní banka, a.s., with a total available credit limit of USD 60,000
thousand (CZK 1,160,760 thousand). As at 31 December 2007, the drawn
down element of the loan was USD 33,810 thousand (CZK 611,213 thousand).
These funds can be used only for financing of the Sikorsky Program.
The loan is secured by pledged receivables and rights resulting from the
general agreement with Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation and by pledged
immovable assets (see Note 4b).

As at 31 December 2008, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):
As at 31 December 2008, the drawn down element of the loan was USD
58,519 thousand (CZK 1,132,116 thousand). The loan maturity is set on
31 July 2009; the loan bears a floating interest rate of 3M LIBOR + margin
and the total interest expense amounted to CZK 35,352 thousand and
CZK 4,013 thousand, respectively in 2008 and 2007.

Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Komerční banka, a.s.
Total

Based on the loan agreement, the Company is obliged to fulfill following financial covenants:
Covenant
Calculation
Resulting price calculation
Direct costs of S-76 production / S-76 selling price
Total indebtedness
Equity / total assets
Return on operations
Operating profit or loss / sale of finished products and services
ROA
Profit or loss for the period / total assets
As at 31 December 2008, the Company met all the above financial indicators.
As at 22 December 2008, the Company signed a loan agreement No. 21559
with Česká exportní banka, a.s., with a total available credit limit of USD
60,000 thousand (CZK 1,160,760 thousand). These funds can be used only
for financing of the Sikorsky Program. The loan is secured by pledged
receivables and rights resulting from the general agreement with Sikorsky

Bank
Česká národní banka

Guarantee
- performing letter of guarantee
- performing letter of guarantee
- surety
- surety
- surety
- surety

Terms
09/91 – 06/09
09/91 – 06/09
non-specified
non-specified
non-specified
03/09

Amount
24,250
1,242
3,772
926
766
27,084
58,040

As at 31 December 2007, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):
Required value
<= 91%
>= 15%
>= 3.5%
>= 0

Aircraft Corporation and by pledged immovable assets (see Note 4b).
The first drawing of the loan will be used for refinancing of the loan from
2007. The loan maturity is set on 31 January 2010 and the loan bears
a floating interest rate of 3M LIBOR + margin. The Company made no use
of this facility as at 31 December 2008.

Bank
Česká národní banka

Guarantee
- performing letter of guarantee
- performing letter of guarantee
- surety
- advance payment guarantee
- surety
- surety
- surety
- surety
- surety
- surety
- letter of credit
- performing letter of guarantee

Amount
22,661
1,161
Česká spořitelna, a.s.
3,525
10,576
3,525
865
Komerční banka, a.s.
245
245
68
96
Deutsche bank AG
4,520
579
Total
48,066
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash deposited in restricted bank accounts of CZK 44,681 thousand
and CZK 42,787 thousand, respectively (see Note 8).
15. OTHER LIA BILITIES
As at 31 December 2008, accruals include in particular outstanding interest
to Česká exportní banka, a.s., and a payable from the purchase of land in 2007.
16. DERIVATIVES
The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at
31 December 2007 and 2008. The derivatives were revalued at fair value, with

Terms
09/91 – 06/08
09/91 – 06/08
non-specified
non-specified
non-specified
non-specified
1/08
1/08
5/08
9/08
2/08
1/08

Deferred income includes in particular revenue from sales related to the
Sikorsky contract, which is recognized into income for the year in which it
was earned.
fair values of the hedging derivatives being included in other receivables
and other payables, respectively, and in differences arising from the
revaluation of assets and liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.

The following table summarizes face values and positive or negative values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

(i n CZK thousands)
Foreign exchange contracts
Total derivatives held for hedging
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2008
Contractual/
Face
765,140
765,140

Fair value
Positive
-

2009

Negative
50,361
50,361

2007
Contractual/
Face
374,606
374,606

Fair value
Positive
49,111
49,111

Negative
-
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17. INCOME TAXES
2008
2007
(in CZK thousands) (in CZK thousands)
Profit before taxes
401,589
235,753
Non-taxable revenues and non-deductible expenses, net, related to write-off of share in joint-venture company IBIS Aerospace Ltd.
174,204
Non-taxable revenues
(29,350)
(5,439)
Difference between book and tax depreciation
75,980
71,534
Non-deductible expenses
Change in allowances
(1,582)
(220,010)
Change in provisions
70,630
(2,915)
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses, shortages and losses)
105,699
191,146
Taxable profit
797,170
270,069
Tax loss carry-forward
(797,170)
(270,069)
Current income tax rate
21 %
24 %
Current tax expense
In accordance with the Income Taxes Act, the Company can carry forward
tax losses generated since 2004 for up to five years. The remaining tax
loss carry-forward from the years 2004 through 2006, the benefit of which

has not been recognized in the accompanying financial statements,
amounted to CZK 829,658 thousand as at 31 December 2008. It will
be recorded when realized.

The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands):
2008
Deferred tax
asset
Difference between net book value of fixed assets for accounting and tax purposes
8,862
Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory
4,051
Allowance against inventory
263,813
Allowance against fixed assets
39,481
Provisions
50,400
Tax loss carryforward
159,735
Total
526,342
Net
526,342
Deferred tax items

Deferred tax
liabi lity

2007
Deferred tax
asset
-

Deferred tax
liability
(5,214)

-

2,525
271,493
33,505
35,973
315,933
661,429
656,215

(5,214)
-

The Company has not recorded a deferred tax asset on the basis that its future recovery is highly uncertain.
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18. LEASES
The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance
sheet (see Note 3i).
Assets which are being used by the Company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the Company when the lease term expires) as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):

Description
Machinery
Car

Terms
Until 2013
Until 2009

Total
lease
42,118
964

Payments
made as at
31/ 12/ 2008
2,368
697

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company has a contractual relationship with mediators and records
liabilities to them upon the completion of sales contracts. Pursuant to the
sale contract, the Company undertakes to pay the mediator a part of the
income realized. It is not possible to determine the amount until contract
completion.
Under the standard terms of its sales contracts, the Company has
a responsibility to make spare parts available for a period between
10-15 years after the date of sale.
As at 8 December 2005, the Company concluded with the Ministry of
Defence of the Czech Republic a general agreement for after warranty
support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft. According to this agreement, in the
period until January 2029, the Company is obliged to provide services,
maintenance and spare parts for planes already owned by the Army of
the Czech Republic, and to assist during their modernization. In cases of
significant breaches of the contractual terms or in case of withdrawal from
the contract, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic is entitled to
claim a penalty and potential additional compensation from the Company.
Under the terms of this agreement, a significant portion of its fixed assets
may not be disposed of (see Note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term
contracts with suppliers.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the commitments arising from
contracts concluded with suppliers amounted to CZK 1,168,455 thousand
and to CZK 1,755,385 thousand, respectively; of that the supplies for the

2009

Payments
made as at
31/ 12/ 2007
326

Remaining payment as at 31/ 12/ 2008
Due within
Due over
one year
one year
7,638
32,112
267
-

Sikorsky Program totaled CZK 1,104,574 thousand and CZK 1,593,819
thousand as at 31 December 2008 and 2007, respectively. These contracts,
as a rule, include a provision stipulating the amount of compensation that
the Company is obliged to pay if it fails to fulfil contractual obligations or
if it withdraws from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept
responsibility for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded a liability insurance for its own aviation
activity, an accident insurance of aircraft and an insurance for damage
caused by faulty products. The Company has concluded a combined
insurance limit in the amount of USD 250,000 thousand regarding the
liability for product within the Sikorsky Program and of USD 75,000
thousand regarding other liability emerging from aeronautical operations
for one and all insured accidents arising during the insurance period
worldwide. The insurance covers the major risks emerging from the
Company’s aeronautical operations.
In 1998, the Company together with GEO s.r.o. conducted an environmental
audit, the result of which was, inter alia, a quantification of investments
required for making the production ecofriendly and for remedy of
environmental damage. The cost estimate totaled CZK 248,375 thousand.
Based on the Contract for repayment of costs incurred in the settlement of
environmental liabilities concluded between the Company and the National
Property Fund of the Czech Republic on 12 August 1998,
the National Property Fund (currently the Ministry of Finance of the Czech
Republic) should cover those costs of the Company which are reasonably
incurred up to CZK 2,691,926 thousand, which exceeds the estimate.
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20. REVENUES
The breakdown of revenues on ordinary activities is as follows (in CZK thousands):

Aviation production
Non-aviation production
Total revenues

2008
Domestic
438,845
49,395
488,240

Foreign
3,612 889
3,612 889

2007
Domestic
826,660
19,360
846,020

Foreign
3,460,967
3,460,967

In 2008, the revenues of the company are concentrated primarily with three
main customers in the aviation industry, i.e. Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation,
the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic and Alena Aeronautica S.p.A.

22. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION
The majority shareholder of AERO Vodochody a.s. is TULAROSA a.s.,
which is owned by Penta Investments Limited with its registered office in
Limassol, Cyprus, which owns shares in other companies both in the
Czech Republic and abroad, and with which AERO Vodochody a.s. has
no significant trading and other activities, except for Privatbanka, a.s.,
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited, Salori Holding B.V. and Penta
Investments Limited.
The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive
officers were granted no loans, guarantees, advances or other benefits in
2008 and 2007 and they do not hold any shares of the Company.

Benefits of certain members of the Company’s statutory bodies and
management consist of the use of automobiles for private purposes.
The Company sells products, goods and provides services to related
parties in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest income
were CZK 66,093 thousand and CZK 42,584 thousand in 2008 and 2007,
respectively.
Pursuant to the agreement concluded in 2008, the Company assumed
a guarantee for liabilities and obligations of Technometra Radotín a.s.
from finance lease contracts entered into with SG Equipment Finance s.r.o.
concerning machinery up to the limit of CZK 120,000 thousand.

Short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
21. PERSONNEL AND RELATED EXPENSES
The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows (in CZK thousands):
2008
Total personnel
Average number of employees
Wages and salaries
Social security and health insurance
Social cost
Other social security
Bonuses to statutory representatives
Total personnel expenses

1,293
497,527
163,007
11,016
2,286
360
674,196

Of which: members
of managerial bodies
74
90,547
22,123
1,454
360
114,244

The members and former members of statutory and supervisory bodies
received total bonuses and other remuneration of CZK 360 thousand and
CZK 325 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
In 2008, members of managerial bodies included both senior management
and the middle management layer. Therefore, the information regarding
members of managerial bodies for 2008 and 2007 is not comparable.

2007
Total personnel
1,314
527,290
174,348
12,219
3,040
325
717,222

Of which: members
of managerial bodies
18
33,370
11,630
431
325
45,756

Related party
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – loan
Penta Investments Limited – loan in CZK
Penta Investments Limited – loan in USD
Loans total
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – trade receivables
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – advance payment
Technometra Radotín, a.s. – lease guarantee
IBIS Aerospace Ltd.
Penta Investments Limited – accrued interest
Penta Investments Limited – trade receivables
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited
Tirrellus, a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Other short-term receivables total

Due dates
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009
2009

2008
1,000
350,000
554,263
905,263
243
328
60,507
805
88
109
92,080

2007
200,000
11,751
211,751
17
2,911
158
21,799
141
251
25,277

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007 related parties were provided no advances.
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded a deposit in related party Privatbanka, a.s. of CZK 50,380 thousand and CZK 150,160 thousand.
Short-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Related party
Technometra Radotín, a.s.
Penta Investments Limited
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited
Total

Due dates
2009
2009
2009

2008
2,111
4,291
6,402

2007
448
7
455

The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary course of business. Purchases including interest were CZK 95,828
thousand and CZK 18,835 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Long-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Related party
Salori Holding B.V.

Due dates
2059

2008
564,882

2007
714,822

Long-term payables to Salori Holding B.V. relate primarily to the payable from loan; the reduction of the payable results from a waiving of principal of CZK
150,000 thousand and interest of CZK 20,451 thousand (see Note 12).
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23. FUTURE OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s production portfolio consists of two main production
programs. The Military Program comprises the L-159 Program and
overhauls of earlier types of aircraft. The Aerostructures Program
is focused mainly on the production of the S-76 helicopter
for the American company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation,
production of the center wing box for the company Alenia Aeronautica
and cooperation with other important worldwide aerospace producers.
The Company has no contracts for the sale of the L-159 aircraft. The only
contractual partner of the production program L-159 is the Ministry
of Defence of the Czech Republic. As at 8 December 2005, the Company
concluded with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic
a general agreement for after warranty support for the aircraft within
which the Company would provide services, maintenance and assist in the
modernization of the fleet and deliveries of spare parts. The contract was
signed for a definite period until January 2029. Since the beginning of the
production of the L-159 aircraft, the Company has sold a total of 72 planes
to the one and only customer (i.e. to the Ministry of Defence of the Czech
Republic). The Company continues its marketing activities to promote the
sales of new aircraft or possible sales of the unused L-159 aircraft of the
Army of the Czech Republic.
Until 2008, the production of Sikorsky helicopters had a growing trend.
Based on the binding orders already received from Sikorsky Aircraft
Corporation for the next year, the Company expects a decrease of the
production in 2009. Based on the cooperation agreement with the Italian
aircraft producer Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A., the Company will supply
thirteen pieces of the center wing box for the C-27J Spartan

cargo aircraft in 2009. In 2007 the Company signed a contract with
the French company Latécoére Toulouse for supplies of hinges and inner
structures of doors for regional transport jet planes Embraer 170
and Embraer 190 in the total amount of approximately one billion Czech
crowns. In the period from 2008 to 2012, the Company should supply
to Latécoére about 800 door subassemblies, with the production
commencing in the current year.
The Company sees also perspectives in the aerostructures production
with other aerospace producers. Currently, negotiations are under way
with leading aerospace producers concerning product subdeliveries.
As at 31 December 2008, the Company had equity of CZK 1,765,860
thousand, share capital of CZK 5,014,089 thousand and accumulated
loss of CZK 3,856,216 thousand. In compliance with the Commercial
Code, a company whose accumulated loss exceeds half of its share capital
must file for bankruptcy or take measures aimed at reducing the loss.
The Company will continue to exercise the approved measures for reducing
the accumulated loss in 2009.
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is contingent on
the development of the above described facts, especially on the majority
shareholder’s strategic decisions and plans.
The management of the company is currently preparing a new long-term
development strategy and objectives of the Company to be submitted to
shareholders. The financial statements were prepared based on the
assumption that the Company will continue as a going concern in the
subsequent year; therefore, they contain no adjustments that might be
required owing to this uncertainty.

24. RESEA RCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Research and development costs amounted to CZK 59,016 thousand and
CZK 66,339 thousand in 2008 and 2007, respectively, and were expensed
as incurred.

25. SIGNIFICANT ITEMS OF INCOME STATEMENT
In 2008 and 2007, other operating revenues comprise in particular
revenues from sale of receivables (see Note 6).
In 2008 and 2007, other operating expenses include in particular the
nominal value of sold receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages
and insurance fees.
In 2008, investments expenses include a write-off of the financial
investment IBIS Aerospace Limited (see Note 4c).

Statutory auditor’s fees as at 31 December were as follows:
Services
Statutory audit
Other assurance services
Total

2008
2,500
2,500

26. SU BSEQUENT EVENTS
As at 1 January 2009 the Company increased the basic capital of the
subsidiary Letiště Vodochody a.s. in the form of a non-monetary
contribution by CZK 1,857,800 thousand to a total of CZK 1,859,800
thousand (i.e. 9,299 shares in materialized form, with a nominal value
of CZK 200 thousand per share).
27. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (SEE APPENDIX 1)
The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method.
The Company did not consider any cash equivalents.
28. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SEE NOTE 10)

The financial statements were drawn up on April 2, 2009.
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In 2008, other finance income consists mainly of income from waived part
of principal and interest from loan from Salori Holding B.V. (see Note 12)
and foreign currency gains. In 2008, other finance expenses consist mainly
of foreign currency losses. In 2007, other finance income and expense
consist mainly of foreign currency gains and losses.
Extraordinary gains for 2008 include a write-off of old accruals for which
the suppliers failed to produce final invoices.

2009

2007
2,500
2,500

WE FOCUS ON THE HIGHEST
QUALITY OF CUSTOMER SUPPORT

REPORT
ON RELATED PARTIES

2008
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CONTRACT ON JAS-39
GRIPEN PYLONS DELIVERIES
SIGNED WITH SAAB
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REPORT ON RELATED PARTIES
Report of the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. according to
provision of Secti on 66a of the A ct No. 513/199, Coll. the Commerci al Code,
as amended (further referred to as “Commercial Code”)
SECTION I. CONTROLLED AND CONTROLLING PARTY
CONTROLLED PARTY
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Seat at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, Postcode 250 70
Identification No.: 00010545
Registered in the Companies Register maintained by the Municipal Court
in Prague, Section B, File 449 (further referred to as “Company”)

CONTROLLING PARTY
Penta Holding Limited
Seat at 44 Paphos, Griva Digeni,
Salamis House, 3rd floor, Postcode 8020, Cyprus Republic
Registration No.: HE 101 570
SECTION II. RELATED PARTIES
Related parties are represented by the Company and parties directly and
indirectly controlling, and companies controlled by the controlling party,
i.e. from January 4, 2007 parties controlled by Penta Holding Limited.

SECTION V. OTHER LEGAL ACTS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
No other legal acts are known to the Company carried out in the interest
of the related parties.
SECTION VI. OTHER MEASURES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
No other measures were carried out in the interest of the related
parties to the knowledge of the Company.

The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. proclaims that all
fulfillments, considerations respectively, which were provided
on the basis of the relations mentioned in Sections IV. – VI. of this report,
were in a customary amount.

SECTION III. DECISIVE PERIOD
This report was elaborated for the period from January 1, 2008 to
December 31, 2008.

This report was presented for review to the Supervisory Board and to the
auditor, who will perform the audit of the financial statements as required
by a special law.

SECTION IV. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS CONCLUDED BY REL ATED PARTIES
In the decisive period, the following contracts between related parties were signed:

In Odolena Voda, March 27, 2009

Party

Contract Name Date of Signature Provided Performance Gained Performance
Duration Detriment
Amendment no. 1 to Loan Facility
Shortened
Shortened
Penta Investments Li mited
6. 2. 2008
1 year
None
Agreement signed on 26. 6. 2007
maturity for 1 year maturity for 1 year
Contract on provision of sublicenses to
Pecuniary
Rights for
Indefinite
Penta Investments Li mited
27. 2. 2008
None
software and maintenance of software
consideration
SAP licenses
period
Amendment no. 2 to Loan Facility
Prolongation
Prolongation
Penta Investments Li mited
25. 6. 2008
1 year
None
Agreement signed on 26. 6. 2007
of loan
of loan
Increased limit
Increased limit
Amendment no. 3 to Loan Facility
Penta Investments Li mited
21. 4. 2008
and shortened
and shortened
1 year
None
Agreement signed on 27. 6. 2007
maturity for 1 year maturity for 1 year
General agreement on electronic
Electronic
Electronic
communications services and
Penta Investments Li mited
9. 5. 2008
communications
communications
3 years
None
on sale of electronic communications
services
services
devices and its accessories – T Mobile
Amendment no. 4 to Loan Facility
Prolongation
Prolongation
Penta Investments Li mited
25. 6. 2008
1 year
None
Agreement signed on 27. 6. 2007
of loan
of loan
Amendment no. 1 Insurance
Opening of Cancellation of the
Penta Investments Li mited,
Indefinite
Contract no. 125006614
26. 9. 2008
mortgage sublimit to contract
None
period
TULAROSA a.s., Salori Holding B.V.
with EGAP and ČEB
to bill
on loan with ČEB
Pledge of bonds
Continuation
Penta Investments Li mited,
Agreement on
to receivable of
of contract
Indefinite
29. 9. 2008
None
TULAROSA a.s., Salori Holding B.V.
mortgage for bonds
PENTA Investments
on loan
period
limited to ČEB
with ČEB
Penta Investments Li mited,
Loan Facility Agreement
Loan Facility
Loan Facility
22. 12. 2008
1 year
None
TULAROSA a.s., Salori Holding B.V.
no. 21559
Agreement
Agreement
Agreement on the change of
Loan Facility
Loan Facility
Salori Holding B.V.
7. 1. 2008
50 years
None
obligations regarding the receivable
Agreement
Agreement
Settlement agreement
27. 3. 2008
Remission of debt
Remission of debt Nonrecurring
None
Salori Holding B.V.
Salori Holding B.V.
Agreement on remission of the debt
30. 11. 2008
Remission of debt
Remission of debt Nonrecurring
None
Contracts on purchase
Indefinite
Rotortech Aero Composites Limi ted
2008
Purchase price
Goods
None
of goods delivery
period
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SECTION VII. CONCLUSION
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. states that it proceeded
with all due diligence of a manager to establish the circle of related parties
for the purpose of this report: by consulting the controlling parties,
both in the period before and after the change in the owner of the Company,
regarding the circle of parties, which were controlled by these parties in
the given period.

Ondřej Benáček
Member of the Board
AERO Vodochody a.s.

2009

Petr Brychta
Member of the Board
AERO Vodochody a.s.
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